
Board of Directors

AGENDA 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
TIME: 6 p.m. DATE:  Monday, April 24, 2023 

PLACE:  Dublin San Ramon Services District 
Boardroom 
7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 
www.derwa.org 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

3. ROLL CALL - Members: Coleman, Vonheeder-Leopold, Chan, and Johnson
  Alternates: Goel and Young 

4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES

5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Meeting Open to the Public)
At this time, those in the audience are encouraged to address the Board on any item of interest that is within
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and not already included on tonight’s agenda. Comments should
not exceed five minutes. Speaker cards are available from the Authority Secretary and should be completed
and returned to the Authority Secretary prior to addressing the Board.  The Chair of the Board will recognize
each speaker, at which time the speaker should proceed to the lectern, introduce him/herself, and then
proceed with his/her comment. Written comments may be submitted to the Authority Secretary at
genzale@dsrsd.com. Comments received by 3 p.m. on the day of the meeting will be provided to the Board.

6. CONSENT CALENDAR
Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one action in the form
listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Member of the
Board or the public prior to the time the Board votes on the Motion to adopt.

A. Approve Minutes of Special Board Meeting of January 30, 2023
Recommended Action: Approve by Motion

B. Approve Treasurer’s Reports for January 31, and February 28, 2023
Recommended Action: Approve by Motion

C. Approve Task Order No. 20 for Fiscal Year 2023-24 for Public Information Services with ICF Jones &
Stokes, Inc.
Recommended Action: Approve by Motion

Our mission is to maximize the amount of recycled water delivered while recovering its costs; in doing so it will provide a 
reliable and consistent supply of recycled water to DSRSD and EBMUD for service to each of the agencies' customers. 

http://www.derwa.org/
mailto:genzale@dsrsd.com


DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority                                Board of Directors 
Agenda, Regular Meeting, Monday, April 24, 2023    Page 2 

 
 

  
7. BOARD BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve Proclamation for Marisol Rubio’s Service on the DERWA Board of Directors 
Recommended Action: Approve by Motion 
 

B. Approve and Establish the Location, Time, and Place of Regular DERWA Board Meetings and Rescind 
Resolution No. 22-6 
Recommended Action: Approve by Resolution 
 

C. Authorize the Authority Manager to Enter into an Agreement with Dublin San Ramon Services District 
to Prepare a DERWA Facilities Energy Evaluation 
Recommended Action: Authorize by Motion 
 

D. Approve and Adopt the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Operating and Capital Budget 
Recommended Action: Approve by Resolution 

 
8. STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. Authority Manager Update 
B. Confirm Next Board Meeting – September 25, 2023 

 
9.       BOARDMEMBER ITEMS 
 
10.     ADJOURNMENT     
 
All materials made available or distributed in open session at Board meetings are public information and are available for inspection 
during business hours by calling the Authority Secretary at (925) 828-0515. A fee may be charged for copies. District facilities and 
meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the Authority 
Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to the meeting.  



  Item 6.A 
 

  DRAFT 

DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY 
(DERWA) 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 30, 2023 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Vice Chair Coleman called the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) 

meeting to order at 6 p.m. He announced that per the Brown Act, all votes taken this evening will be 
done by a roll call vote due to Director Johnson participating via teleconference. 
 
The Boardroom and teleconference location were open to the public during open session. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, meeting attendees were required to conduct a self-screening before entering 
District facilities and remote meeting locations. Face coverings were optional. 

 
2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG  
 
3. ROLL CALL – Directors present: Vice Chair John Coleman, and Directors Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, 

April Chan, and Ann Marie Johnson (participated via teleconference). DERWA Staff present: Jan Lee, 
Authority Manager; Robert Hannay, Acting Treasurer; Austin Cho, General Counsel; and Vivian Chiu, 
Acting Authority Secretary 

 
4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES – Authority Manager Lee announced that EBMUD Treasury 

Manager Robert Hannay is attending for Treasurer Richard Lou and DSRSD Management Analyst Vivian 
Chiu is attending for Authority Secretary Nicole Genzale this evening. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT – 6:02 p.m. – None 
 
6. BOARD REORGANIZATION 
 

A. Approve Selection of Board Officers for 2023 
 

Director Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED to Nominate and Elect Vice Chair Coleman as DERWA Chair. 
Director Chan SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR AYES. 
 
Chair Coleman assumed the new position and continued to run the meeting. 
 
Director Johnson MOVED to Nominate and Elect Director Vonheeder-Leopold as DERWA Vice 
Chair. Chair Coleman SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR AYES. 
 
Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED to Appoint Nicole Genzale as Authority Secretary. Chair 
Coleman SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR AYES.  

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED for approval of the items on the Consent Calendar. Director 
Chan SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR AYES. 

 
A. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of September 26, 2022 

 



DERWA Special Meeting Minutes  January 30, 2023 
 
 

  2 DRAFT 

B. Approve Treasurer’s Reports for August 31, September 30, October 31, November 30, and 
December 31, 2022 

 
C. Approve Quarterly Investment Reports for September 30, and December 31, 2022 

 
D. Authorize the Authority Manager to Enter into a Renewed License Agreement with Pacific Gas 

& Electric (PG&E) to Use an Existing Well for Supplemental Water Supply 
 
8. BOARD BUSINESS 
 

A. Accept the DERWA Independent Auditor’s Reports and Financial Statements for Years Ending 
June 30, 2022, and 2021 
 
Acting Treasurer Hannay reviewed the item for the Board. He reported this item includes 
audited financial statements for two fiscal years and the audits did not find any issues, 
deficiencies, material weaknesses or findings with the DERWA accounting practices and internal 
controls for these two fiscal years. 
 
Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED to Accept the DERWA Independent Auditor’s Reports and 
Financial Statements for Years Ending June 30, 2022, and 2021. Director Johnson SECONDED the 
MOTION, which CARRIED with THREE AYES and ONE ABSENTION (Chan). 
 

B. Receive and Discuss Information on Recycled Water Connection Moratorium 
 

Authority Manager Lee reviewed the item for the Board, and addressed questions raised during 
the discussion on supplemental supply and demand management efforts at the last Board 
meeting, concerning the status of the recycled water connection moratorium. She reported on 
the following areas: 

• Background on the connection moratorium 
• Status of the current supplemental supply and demand management efforts 
• Issues to consider during discussions on the connection moratorium 

 
The Board and staff discussed various aspects of the report. They discussed methods for managing 
storage and balancing supply and demand, anticipated flow supply, and possible effluent sources. 
They also discussed supplementing the DERWA recycled water supply with potable water and 
reasons for not including it in the 2022 Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of 
Recycled Water. Staff commented that data from EBMUD’s recently installed AMI (advanced 
metering infrastructure) sites and preliminary results from the Recycled Water Supply and 
Operations Plan Update study would allow better demand analysis and more detailed evaluations 
of the moratorium for Board discussion in September.  
 
The Board inquired about the recycled water connection at the Crow Canyon County Club (to 
come online this summer as EBMUD’s second golf course customer) and the Dublin Sports 
Grounds. DSRSD Engineering and Technical Services Director Steve Delight explained the City of 
Dublin had switched the recycled water connections at the fields to Don Biddle Park. 
 

C. Approve Professional Services Agreement for Consulting Services with Brown and Caldwell and 
Task Order No. 1 for the DERWA Recycled Water Supply and Operations Plan Update  
 



DERWA Special Meeting Minutes  January 30, 2023 
 
 

  3 DRAFT 

Authority Manager Lee reviewed the item for the Board. She reported the project is fully funded 
from the capital budget approved by the Board for fiscal year 2023.  
 
The Board asked for clarification on expiration of the agreement at the end of 2025 for the 12-
month project. Staff explained the task order has a one-year timeframe, whereas the master 
agreement has a longer term to accommodate any additional work subject to approval by the 
Board. 
 
Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED to Approve the Professional Services Agreement for 
Consulting Services with Brown and Caldwell and Task Order No. 1 for the DERWA Recycled 
Water Supply and Operations Plan Update. Chair Coleman SECONDED the MOTION, which 
CARRIED with THREE AYES and ONE ABSTENTION (Chan). 
 

D. Receive Presentation on Preparation of the Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 
 
Authority Manager Lee remarked that this item highlights the few areas of the budget where 
staff are anticipating changes before budget adoption at the next regular Board meeting on April 
24. The complete fiscal year 2024 budget with details will be included in the April agenda 
packet. She then introduced DSRSD Management Analyst Corinne Ferreyra, who gave a 
presentation on the Preparation of the Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 Operating and Capital 
Budgets that was provided to the Board and added to the DERWA and DSRSD websites as 
supplemental materials. The presentation detailed the following areas:  

• Overview 
• Historical operating budgets and actual expenditures 
• Two factors for increases to the proposed operating budget 
• Proposed capital improvement projects 
• Next steps 

 
The Board and staff discussed various aspects of the presentation. They discussed the proposed 
pilot project to install a test well in the fringe groundwater basin, solar options to obtain federal 
and state grants and offset electrical costs, DSRSD’s Energy Facilities Master Plan (in progress) to 
identify potential energy savings, and the estimated $1.2 million increase to treat DERWA 
backwash. 

 
9. STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. Authority Manager Update 
 

Authority Manager Lee reported a change from a verbal to a written format for this standing 
item to allow the Board to review the information in advance of the meeting and to lighten the 
meeting minutes. She called attention to the update’s section regarding future Board meetings. 
She commented that staff may propose adjustments to the meeting frequency and schedule to 
better align matters to be considered by the Board.  
 

10. BOARD MEMBER ITEMS – None 
 
 
 
 



DERWA Special Meeting Minutes  January 30, 2023 
 
 

  4 DRAFT 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Coleman adjourned the meeting at 6:43 p.m. 
 

Submitted by,  
 
 
Vivian Chiu, MMC 
Acting Authority Secretary 
 
FOR: Nicole M. Genzale, CMC 
Authority Secretary 



Item 6.B 

Prepared by RL  Reviewed by JL 

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve Treasurer’s Reports for January 31, and February 28, 2023 

  
 

Summary: 
 
Attached are the Treasurer’s Reports for the months ending January 31, and February 28, 
2023, submitted by Treasurer Richard Lou.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Treasurer recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Motion, the Treasurer’s 
Reports for the months ending January 31, and February 28, 2023. 
 
April 24, 2023 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Treasurer’s Report – January 31, 2023 
2. Treasurer’s Report – February 28, 2023 



�����������	��
�
���	����	���������	�����������	������	���	�������	� !	"#"$	���%%	��&���	'(()*+,-	./	(+,	0123'	456789565:8	;6<=5>	?=5	>@6	A=B>@	,C-.CD	E)CF)GH	IJK	LMLNO	'	/FPP)GH	QR	(G)C/)*(.QC/	)C-	G,*QPP,C-)(.QC	RQSSQT/O	2,U,CF,/VWFC-.CDX	0FG.CD	(+,	PQC(+K	YLILKLZ[	)D,C*H	G,.P\FG/,P,C(/	)C-	Y[KL[L	.C	.C(,G,/(	T)/	G,*,.U,-O	W./*)S	H,)G](Q]-)(,	G,U,CF,	RQG	Ŵ LI	(Q()S,-	Y[L_KL[̀O	aQ	Q(+,G	P./*,SS)C,QF/	b)HP,C(/	T,G,	G,*,.U,-	(+./	PQC(+O	1cb,C/,/X	dFGG,C(	PQC(+	-./\FG/,P,C(/	T,G,	YIKZeIO	W./*)S	H,)G](Q]-)(,	,cb,C-.(FG,/	RQG	Ŵ LI	(Q()S	YJKIMIKeIef	QR	T+.*+	YJKIMJKLeg	T)/	RQG	Qb,G)(.CD	,cb,C/,/O	1cb,C-.(FG,/	-Q	CQ(	G,RS,*(	)SS	/()RR	)C-	*QC/FS()C(	*Q/(/	.C*FGG,-	\F(	CQ(	H,(	\.SS,-	(Q	0123'	.C	Ŵ LIO	d)/+X	h+,	*)/+	\)S)C*,	)(	E)CF)GH	IJK	LMLI	T)/	YJKZ̀JK[J̀O	iF\P.((,-	\HX	2.*+)G-	jQF	hG,)/FG,G	0)(,-X	W,\GF)GH	JgK	LMLN	kG,b)G,-	\Hlllllllllllllllllll	mnO	oQF*pq	2,U.,T,-	\Hllllllllllllllllll	m̂O	dQ\FGCq	'bbGQU,-	\Hllllllllllllllllll	m3O	o/.,+q	rstuvw	xyzz{|}|zy~~�	�|}���	��	rstuvw	xyzz	{yz��	����������	��������	������������	�s�t��{|}|zy~~�	�|}���	��	�����	�s�t��	{��	u�������	�s�t��w	s��uust�z|�}w	st����w	��y|~�������us�t������t��us�w	u���	{yz��	����������	��������	�������	��s��	�u�s�yz	����|s��	��������������r�|��w	�|��t�{|}|zy~~�	�|}���	��	r�|��w	�|��t�	{yz��	����������	��������	�������

Attachment 1



���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	������������ �����
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$���&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"()*+,)-+�.+/01�2 3�������������������� 456785624������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 456785624��������� 95:;:5<=8���� :524756<4�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�= 3�������������������� 9566;52=8������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 9566;52=8��������� :5;;=5=79���� 7465;67��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�: 3�������������������� =5=;7588:������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� =5=;7588:��������� 2542<5=89���� 67754<<��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�9 3�������������������� 257295<6<������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 257295<6<��������� :7:57;6������� 25=625=49�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�6 3�������������������� 259:85<<2������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 259:85<<2��������� =8852<6������� 25=:854<7�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�7 3�������������������� 7546<5;7<������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 7546<5;7<��������� 9:854;9������� 75:=<58;6�����>?+/@A+-@�(,/-@ 3�������������������� 2654:=54<9����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2654:=54<9������� ;5<9;5;9:���� 754;:5<62�����(BA*�C@/@)D-E 3�������������������� ;567:5=<9������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� ;567:5=<9��������� 75447579;���� 254;75797�����F/@+?�>/-GE 3�������������������� 2=5:<:59;:����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2=5:<:59;:������� 45==2566=���� 652425<:2�����(1/E+�=�()*+,)-+�H�(BA*�C@/@)D- 3�������������������� :597=5<:;������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :597=5<:;��������� 3������������������� :597=5<:;�����I/0GJD-+�KD??DE)D- 3�������������������� 2528<5889������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2528<5889��������� 2==5:8=������� <;7548=��������CKLML 3�������������������� :9254=7���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :9254=7������������ 2<954;9������� 2975<9=��������NIOPM�()*+,)-+�(1/E+�=5�:�H9 3�������������������� 78=52<:���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 78=52<:������������ 3������������������� 78=52<:��������Q)-+�C0?++-)-R 3�������������������� <=45;22���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� <=45;22������������ 6=;5;6=������� :<;5<6<��������S+TU.+*,/0+A+-@�K/*)@/,�V68W =8;5888��������� :=25<;4���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :=25<;4������������ 2;:56::������� 2:;5969��������OQUPX�KD-@?D,�(?DR?/A)-R�P*Y/@+ 3�������������������� 2995:77���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2995:77������������ ;=5=;<��������� 7=5844����������(?DR?/A�(,/--)-R�H�L)?�.+,)+Z 3�������������������� 659<257=:������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 659<257=:��������� =57<757;6���� =54<95<:;�����(,/--)-R��(?)D?�[+/?E 3�������������������� :57765::8������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :57765::8��������� 254<7582=���� 25;7<5:2;�����(+?A/-+-@�CB**,\�CB**,]� 9885888��������� 259;2599=������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 259;2599=��������� ;6<5=:7������� 7==5=87��������(C.32�XQM�.+*,/0+A+-@ 3�������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������L)?�.+,)+Z�X/,̂+�.+1/J),)@/@)D-U.+*,/0+A+-@ 965888����������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������CQPX�/-Y�OQ�_*+?/@)D-/,�L-/,]E)E 3�������������������� 92566=������������ 3����������������������� =5796�������������� 9952<4�������������� =85::2��������� =:5;77����������K1,D?)-+�O)̀+?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 9=5888����������� 2=57==������������ 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2=57==�������������� 65;87����������� 75;27������������CQPX�K/J,+�a/?-+EE�.+*,/0+A+-@ 7;5888����������� ;=574=������������ 3����������������������� 3��������������������� ;=574=�������������� :;58=<��������� 99579:����������PX�b/A*�N,+0@?)0/,�KD--+0@D?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 685888����������� 2=757:6���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2=757:6������������ 6;5=6=��������� 7;5:;:����������aXLK�.+*,/0+A+-@E 475888����������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������>c(C�XQM�P*R?/Y+E 7:5888����������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������OQ�O+AJ?/-+�.+*,/0+ 3�������������������� 7<;5;::���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 7<;5;::������������ ::65998������� :7:5:<:��������bXLOFL�KD--+0@)D- 3�������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������7@1�.F>(�C/-Y�Q),@+? 3�������������������� =66����������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� =66������������������ =4���������������� ==;���������������MF.�c.FO3�(?D*�;9�.Y�:�M?DBR1@�(?Dd+0@ 3�������������������� 2759:=������������ 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2759:=�������������� ;5=27����������� ;5=27������������(C.2�U.+0]\�F/@+?�>?+/@A+-@�Ǹ*/-E)D- :65888����������� 2656=958<6����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2656=958<6������� <5;29562;���� 6548<5644�����(,+/E/-@D-�K/*)@/,�I),,)-RUKD-@)-R+-0] 3�������������������� 654<652:<������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 654<652:<��������� 3������������������� 654<652:<�����K/*)@/,)e+Y�c-@+?+E@ 3�������������������� 25<785;4=������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 25<785;4=��������� <785;=4������� 258885896�����fghi������������ j��ih�hikkh��� l����������������������� �imnk�������������� j��ihj�i�������� kjim��i��n�� kji�hhifmg���opqrstuvw�x�utqy ���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	�����������������
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$����&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"MN.FL�(?DR?/A�O/-/R+? =965888��������� :5<9=5842������� 25;26��������������� :;5:;<������������ :5<;85978��������� =5;6=598=���� 252=;586;�����>?+/EB?+? 2885888��������� :588<5;<9������� =584;��������������� 245;8;������������ :58=4548=��������� =5=485447���� 4675<=7��������b+R/,�KDB-E+, 465888����������� 6965<<4���������� 3����������������������� 75964�������������� 66=5969������������ 9295:92������� 2:;522:��������C+0?+@/?] =85888����������� =695829���������� 3����������������������� 9599<�������������� =6;597:������������ 2<:5;9;������� 795726����������_@1+? 2:85888��������� 254:95:=<������� 3����������������������� 2=752=4���������� 25;785967��������� 25:<65:9=���� 9765229��������_*+?/@)D-�/-Y�O/)-@+-/-0+�M+@/), 958885888������ =4579<5;<=����� 3����������������������� 2528;5879������� =;54645<67������� =25<8<58;;�� 75;9;5;7;�����M+J@�C+?̂)0+ 25796562:������ =;5722522=����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� =;5722522=������� 265:97578<�� 2:5=79568:���mi�jkikj������� mkihnhi��f����� �igf���������������� ji��ji�fn������� mhi�ngim��������� nni�g�in�m�� ��immmijfh����%z{�����z�|}$ hi���ikj� jmginknigmm �igf� ji���if�f jmfihkgig�k fmi�jnimn� h�ihnnijmk%�~��'�$����'����! �	����������� �����"�����LR+-0]�KD-@?)JB@)D-MC.CM 3�������������������� 3���������������������NIOPM 3�������������������� 3���������������������(,+/E/-@D- 3�������������������� 3���������������������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�MC.CM 3�������������������� 3���������������������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�NIOPM 27<5;;<��������� 27<5;;<����������KDAA+?0)/,�(/*+?�cEEB+Y 3�������������������� 3���������������������(,+/E/-@D-�*/]A+-@E 7=5:<7����������� :9;597:����������c-@+?+E@�U�KD-@?/0@E 65=6=������������� ;5<89��������������O)E0�c-0DA+ 3�������������������� 3���������������������>_>Lb�.NXNSPNC�H�QPSMcS� =:456:4��������� 6=45=67����������KLCa�LXLcbLIbN �	����������� �����"�����I+R)--)-R�K/E1 257=45;4=������ 25;865=;8������� (?+*/?+Y�J]��������������������������� ���������I+R\�I/,/-0+�LYd��(?)D?�[+/?�L00?B/,E� 3�������������������� ;:=5<2<���������� ��������������������������������������������O/@@�aDB0G M/@+.DB-Y)-R 3�������������������� 3���������������������.+̂)+T+Y�J]�������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������[+--]�KDJB?- M/@+>D@/,�.+̂+-B+E�H�QB-Y)-R =:456:4��������� 6=45=67����������>D@/,�Ǹ*+-Y)@B?+E �:5;<:������������� �25:8:5<:<������� L**?D̂+Y�J]�������������������������� ���������N-Y)-R�K/E1 25;725627������ 25;725627������� ���������������������������������������������F)-EB-�aE)+1 M/@+8

����"�z������������������"�����

�|���|}�l��%z{���

����"�������"��������������"�����

�$%$�����'��%����}����|��%�|'��z%����%�|$'%�%�$�%��z%��z%�������%�z��������{|�'|%���ji�����

����������� ������������������������������������ �¡¢¡£¤¢¡¤¥¦�¥£ ¦§ ¥̈�©¢ª«¢¢«¬��������®� ��������������������¬��������®���̄  ���°¬��������®����°±�������������°¡¡¢���²���°�����¤����®�³��²��¤��²���°́µ����� �¡¢¡£¤¢¡¤¥¦�¥¦ ¢¦ £¦�©¢ª«¢¢«�±�����±�®�����¶�®���� �¡¢¡¡¤¢¢£¤¡¢£¥¦����·��̧�����������������������������·��̧���������� �¡¢¡£¤¢¡¤¥¹�¥£ £§ ¡¥�©¢ª«¢¢«



����� ����� ����� ��	�
��� ��� ����� ����� �������� !�����"��	� #$%&�� �%�$'	 �%�$'	 �%�$'	()*(+*,- ,(((,,+.+ /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>+?*--@ AB.C() --)C++4444444444444444 )+-C-.4444444444444444 � AB.C() (C((()*,.*,- ,(((,-?+A D08!246�DD4E4D58FG01H4DD; ��:43���:40IJ��4>+?*--@ .-AC(( -.?C?K4444444444444444 )?+C,,4444444444444444 � .-AC(( (C((()*,.*,- ,(((,-?(( /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>+?*--@ A,BC() ,K?CAA4444444444444444 )A)C.?4444444444444444 � A,BC() (C((()*,.*,- ,(((,-?(( /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>+?*--@ .BAC() -B?CBB4444444444444444 )B+C(,4444444444444444 � .BAC() (C((()*,.*,- ,(((,-?(( /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>+?*--@ ,B?C(( )BKCBB4444444444444444 BKC()444444444444444444 � ,B?C(( (C((()*,.*,- ,(((,-?-) 2/<5H ��:43���:4!LM�40NN�>+?*--@ )O.A-C-A )O(-AC(A4444444444444 .(BC-(4444444444444444 � )O.A-C-A (C((:444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((:444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((:444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((:444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((-OKB,C-? ,O+(?CB( )O,KACA? -OKB,C-? (C((!����=�N���M4L=4H�MPCQR42�J�� 44440SLI��4,(,-*()*(+ AB.C()T444444444444 ;"��M���L�:4 :4444444444444444444444,(,-*()*,. -O-B?C-+T444444444 4 (C((1�NL�N�"�J(C((1�NL�N�"�J(C((1�NL�N�"�J�; -OKB,C-?4444444444444 (C((1�NL�N�"�J!0; :444444444444444444444-OKB,C-?T4444444444444;������J4PU VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV444444444444<���4GLINR H���1�W��X�J4PU VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV444444444444Y���U4!LPI�� H���0���LW�J4PU VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV444444444444Q��MI�4GM��Z H���

�����[�����4���\����4]���4��̂ ��_\������\4�̀ 4�a��#�_����4�̀�4̂ �4���_��4�#���b�'$���4cde4fgfc

hijklm4nopp qrsrpottu4vrswxy4zu4hijklm4nopp4qopx{4|}|~�}|���4�~{��{~�4�}��}}��xwwu4�izj�w qrsrpottu4vrswxy4zu4�xwwu4�izj�w4q�{4kw��xwwu4�izj�wm4i��kkijwprwsm4ij�||}m4x�ort�uxwwu�kizj�w�xz�jy�ki�m4k���4qopx{4|}|~�}|���4��{}�{�}4�}��}}�4�yizx4�k�izop4�x�vriw{4|}||�}}~�|}~��hvrx�m4�rwvjw qrsrpottu4vrswxy4zu4hvrx�m4�rwvjw4qopx{4|}|~�}|���4�~{~�{��4�}��}}�



����������	
������ ������ ������������ ���������� �!��"#�$%�&�'((�)*)+*,�-.*/0123�04/5,6+7564/89:;<=>�?;@ABCDE;A;<FE�G�HI?IH ����9:;<=>�?;@ABCDE;A;<FE�G�JKLMH ��N�����O�P@F>�QR�ST;UEU<FQ<�SU>A;<FE ���VNO���W<F;D;EF�W<=QA; O��O����XFY;D�?;@ABCDE;A;<FEG�L@E= ����Z*33�6/[460*�\-1)*/538K9??J]]�KMIŴJII�IJ?_WPJI�ŴP �̀�̀���V abNO���cd9̂ PJ�IXdd�e�dM̂ fg9?H�ddS �̀�Ò���V aOVb���cK9??J]]�KMIŴJII�IJ?_WPJI�ŴP �̀�Ò���V ab�N���cK9??J]]�KMIŴJII�IJ?_WPJI�ŴP �̀�Ò���V aONb���cK9??J]]�KMIŴJII�IJ?_WPJI�ŴP �̀�Ò���V a�N����cJKLMH �̀�Ò���V a��ObV�Vbc����������	
������ h����� ijkillml���������������?QC<n@<: ��b���������������������������������������	
�h����� ijkilkmhh��������������SD;oUD;n�B>����ppppppppppppppppppppppppp pppppppppppppp���������������������������������LUFF�gQC=q HUF;?;r@;s;n�B>����ppppppppppppppppppppppppp pppppppppppppp���������������������������������t;<<>�PQBCD< HUF;9ooDQr;n�B>����ppppppppppppppppppppppppp pppppppppppppp���������������������������������u@<EC<�gE@;Y HUF;

vwxyz��z{|�xw}~x�

����������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������� ���¡��������������������������� ���¡���¢����£������ ���¡����£¤�������������£������¥���£����������¡�¦��¥�����¥���£§̈����������������������©��ª���������¤�����¤�¡�����«�¡������������������������¬�������������������������������¬�����������������������������ª��©��������



�����������	��
�
���	����	���������	�����������	������	���	��������	�� 	�!�"		�����	��#���			$%%&'()*	+,	%()	-./0$	12345623275	839:2;	<:2	;=3	>:?;=	)@*+@A	B)CDE&DF	GHI	GJGKL	$	,EMM&DF	NO	%D&@,&'%+N@,	&@*	D)'NMM)@*&%+N@	ONPPNQ,L		/)R)@E),SBE@*+@AT	-ED+@A	%()	MN@%(I	UVWIWXX	+@	&A)@'F	D)+MCED,)M)@%,	Q)D)	D)')+R)*L	B+,'&P	F)&DY%NY*&%)	D)R)@E)	OND	BZGK	%N%&P)*	U[X[IJJJL	\N	N%()D	M+,')PP&@)NE,	]&FM)@%,	Q)D)	D)')+R)*	%(+,	MN@%(L		.̂])@,),T	_EDD)@%	MN@%(	*+,CED,)M)@%,	Q)D)	UKIXV̀L	B+,'&P	F)&DY%NY*&%)	)̂])@*+%ED),	OND	BZGK	%N%&P	UVIKJWIK[̀a	NO	Q(+'(	UVIKJXIWVV	Q&,	OND	N])D&%+@A	)̂])@,),L	.̂])@*+%ED),	*N	@N%	D)OP)'%	&PP	,%&OO	&@*	'N@,EP%&@%	'N,%,	+@'EDD)*	CE%	@N%	F)%	C+PP)*	%N	-./0$	+@	BZGKL		_&,(T	b()	'&,(	C&P&@')	&%	B)CDE&DF	GHI	GJGK	Q&,	UVIHW[IHXKL				cECM+%%)*	CFT				/+'(&D*	dNE	bD)&,ED)D			-&%)*T	e&D'(	VKI	GJGK							fD)]&D)*	CFggggggggggggggggggg	heL	iNE'jk		/)R+)Q)*	CFgggggggggggggggggg	hZL	_NCED@k					$]]DNR)*	CFgggggggggggggggggg	h0L	i,+)(k							
lmnopq	rsttuvwvtsxxy	zvw{|}	~y	lmnopq	rstt	ust|�	����������	��������	��������|{{y	�m~n�{uvwvtsxxy	zvw{|}	~y	�|{{y	�m~n�{	u��	o{��|{{y	�m~n�{q	m��oomn{tv{wq	mn����q	|�svx�y|{{y�om~n�{�|~�n}�om�q	o���	ust|�	����������	��������	�������	�}m~|	�o�m~st	�|�zvm{�	��������������lzv|�q	�v{zn{ uvwvtsxxy	zvw{|}	~y	lzv|�q	�v{zn{	ust|�	����������	��������	�������

Attachment 2



���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	������������ �����
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$���&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"()*+,)-+�.+/01�2 3�������������������� 456785624������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 456785624��������� 95:;:5<=8���� :524756<4�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�= 3�������������������� 9566;52=8������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 9566;52=8��������� :5;;=5=79���� 7465;67��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�: 3�������������������� =5=;7588:������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� =5=;7588:��������� 2542<5=89���� 67754<<��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�9 3�������������������� 257295<6<������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 257295<6<��������� :7:57;6������� 25=625=49�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�6 3�������������������� 259:85<<2������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 259:85<<2��������� =8852<6������� 25=:854<7�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�7 3�������������������� 7546<5;7<������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 7546<5;7<��������� 9:854;9������� 75:=<58;6�����>?+/@A+-@�(,/-@ 3�������������������� 2654:=54<9����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2654:=54<9������� ;5<9;5;9:���� 754;:5<62�����(BA*�C@/@)D-E 3�������������������� ;567:5=<9������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� ;567:5=<9��������� 75447579;���� 254;75797�����F/@+?�>/-GE 3�������������������� 2=5:<:59;:����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2=5:<:59;:������� 45==2566=���� 652425<:2�����(1/E+�=�()*+,)-+�H�(BA*�C@/@)D- 3�������������������� :597=5<:;������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :597=5<:;��������� 3������������������� :597=5<:;�����I/0GJD-+�KD??DE)D- 3�������������������� 2528<5889������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2528<5889��������� 2==5:8=������� <;7548=��������CKLML 3�������������������� :9254=7���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :9254=7������������ 2<954;9������� 2975<9=��������NIOPM�()*+,)-+�(1/E+�=5�:�H9 3�������������������� 78=52<:���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 78=52<:������������ 3������������������� 78=52<:��������Q)-+�C0?++-)-R 3�������������������� <=45;22���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� <=45;22������������ 6=;5;6=������� :<;5<6<��������S+TU.+*,/0+A+-@�K/*)@/,�V68W =8;5888��������� :=25<;4���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :=25<;4������������ 2;:56::������� 2:;5969��������OQUPX�KD-@?D,�(?DR?/A)-R�P*Y/@+ 3�������������������� 2995:77���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2995:77������������ ;=5=;<��������� 7=5844����������(?DR?/A�(,/--)-R�H�L)?�.+,)+Z 3�������������������� 659<257=:������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 659<257=:��������� =57<757;6���� =54<95<:;�����(,/--)-R��(?)D?�[+/?E 3�������������������� :57765::8������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� :57765::8��������� 254<7582=���� 25;7<5:2;�����(+?A/-+-@�CB**,\�CB**,]� 9885888��������� 259;2599=������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 259;2599=��������� ;6<5=:7������� 7==5=87��������(C.32�XQM�.+*,/0+A+-@ 3�������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������L)?�.+,)+Z�X/,̂+�.+1/J),)@/@)D-U.+*,/0+A+-@ 965888����������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������CQPX�/-Y�OQ�_*+?/@)D-/,�L-/,]E)E 3�������������������� 92566=������������ 3����������������������� =5796�������������� 9952<4�������������� =85::2��������� =:5;77����������K1,D?)-+�O)̀+?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 9=5888����������� 2=57==������������ 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2=57==�������������� 65;87����������� 75;27������������CQPX�K/J,+�a/?-+EE�.+*,/0+A+-@ 7;5888����������� ;=574=������������ 3����������������������� 3��������������������� ;=574=�������������� :;58=<��������� 99579:����������PX�b/A*�N,+0@?)0/,�KD--+0@D?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 685888����������� 2=757:6���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2=757:6������������ 6;5=6=��������� 7;5:;:����������aXLK�.+*,/0+A+-@E 475888����������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������>c(C�XQM�P*R?/Y+E 7:5888����������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������OQ�O+AJ?/-+�.+*,/0+ 3�������������������� 7<;5;::���������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 7<;5;::������������ ::65998������� :7:5:<:��������bXLOFL�KD--+0@)D- 3�������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 3����������������������� 3������������������� 3�������������������7@1�.F>(�C/-Y�Q),@+? 3�������������������� =66����������������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� =66������������������ =4���������������� ==;���������������MF.�c.FO3�(?D*�;9�.Y�:�M?DBR1@�(?Dd+0@ 3�������������������� 2759:=������������ 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2759:=�������������� ;5=27����������� ;5=27������������(C.2�U.+0]\�F/@+?�>?+/@A+-@�Ǹ*/-E)D- :65888����������� 2656=958<6����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 2656=958<6������� <5;29562;���� 6548<5644�����(,+/E/-@D-�K/*)@/,�I),,)-RUKD-@)-R+-0] 3�������������������� 654<652:<������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 654<652:<��������� 3������������������� 654<652:<�����K/*)@/,)e+Y�c-@+?+E@ 3�������������������� 25<785;4=������� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� 25<785;4=��������� <785;=4������� 258885896�����fghi������������ j��ih�hikkh��� l����������������������� �imnk�������������� j��ihj�i�������� kjim��i��n�� kji�hhifmg���opqrstuvw�x�utqy ���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	�����������������
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$����&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"MN.FL�(?DR?/A�O/-/R+? =965888��������� :5<9=5842������� =5:26��������������� 985486������������ :5<;=5447��������� =5;6952:<���� 252=;57:4�����>?+/EB?+? 2885888��������� :588<5;<9������� 3����������������������� 245;8;������������ :58=4548=��������� =5=485447���� 4675<=7��������b+R/,�KDB-E+, 465888����������� 6965<<4���������� 25282��������������� 4566;�������������� 66:5666������������ 9265277������� 2:;5:;<��������C+0?+@/?] =85888����������� =695829���������� 3����������������������� 9599<�������������� =6;597:������������ 2<:5;9;������� 795726����������_@1+? 2:85888��������� 254:95:=<������� 3����������������������� 2=752=4���������� 25;785967��������� 25:<65:9=���� 9765229��������_*+?/@)D-�/-Y�O/)-@+-/-0+�M+@/), 958885888������ =4579<5;<=����� 3����������������������� 2528;5879������� =;54645<67������� =25<8<58;;�� 75;9;5;7;�����M+J@�C+?̂)0+ 25796562:������ =;5722522=����� 3����������������������� 3��������������������� =;5722522=������� 265:97578<�� 2:5=79568:���mi�jkikj������� mkihnhi��f����� �injm��������������� ji��nihjj������� mhi�k�i���������� nni�gnifmg�� ��immhi�k�����%z{�����z�|}$ hi���ikj� jmginknigmm �injm ji��hi�km jmfihm�i��� fmi�jhi��� h�ihnki���%�~��'�$����'����! �	����������� �����"�����LR+-0]�KD-@?)JB@)D-MC.CM 3�������������������� 3���������������������NIOPM 3�������������������� 3���������������������(,+/E/-@D- 3�������������������� 3���������������������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�MC.CM 3�������������������� 3���������������������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�NIOPM 3�������������������� 27<5;;<����������KDAA+?0)/,�(/*+?�cEEB+Y 3�������������������� 3���������������������(,+/E/-@D-�*/]A+-@E 245499����������� :775=84����������c-@+?+E@�U�KD-@?/0@E 3�������������������� ;5<89��������������O)E0�c-0DA+ 3�������������������� 3���������������������>_>Lb�.NXNSPNC�H�QPSMcS� 245499����������� 6965888����������KLCa�LXLcbLIbN �	����������� �����"�����I+R)--)-R�K/E1 25;725626������ 25;865=;8������� (?+*/?+Y�J]��������������������������� ���������I+R\�I/,/-0+�LYd��(?)D?�[+/?�L00?B/,E� 3�������������������� ;:=5<2<���������� ��������������������������������������������O/@@�aDB0G M/@+.DB-Y)-R 3�������������������� 3���������������������.+̂)+T+Y�J]�������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������[+--]�KDJB?- M/@+>D@/,�.+̂+-B+E�H�QB-Y)-R 245499����������� 6965888����������>D@/,�Ǹ*+-Y)@B?+E �:5927������������� �25:845:67������� L**?D̂+Y�J]�������������������������� ���������N-Y)-R�K/E1 25;465;9:������ 25;465;9:������� ���������������������������������������������F)-EB-�aE)+1 M/@+8

����"�z������������������"�����

�|���|}�l��%z{���

����"�������"��������������"�����

�$%$�����'��%����}����|��%�|'��z%����%�|$'%�%�$�%��z%��z%�������%�z�����������%'|%���gi�����

����������� ������������������������������������ �¡¢¡£¤¢£¤¥¢�¥¢ ¡¢ ¦¡�§¢̈©¢¢©ª�����«���¬� ��������������������ª�����«���¬��� ���®ª�����«���¬����®̄�������������®¡¡¢���°���®�����¤����¬�±��°��¤��°���®²³����� �¡¢¡£¤¢£¤¥́�¥¢ £́ ¢̈�§¢µ©¢¢©��̄����̄�¬�����¶�¬���� �¡¢¡¡¤¢¢£¤¡¢£¡¡����·��̧����� ������������������������·��̧���������� �¡¢¡£¤¢£¤¥́�¥µ ¥¦ ¦¡�§¢µ©¢¢©



����� ����� ����� ��	�
��� ��� ����� ����� �������� !�����"��	� #$%&�� �%�$'	 �%�$'	 �%�$'	()*+(*), )((()-.-. /�012345671/8499: ��;/��<�49� �"4!=>�?�"4@A.*,,B +8+(+C(( .,.CA.4444444444444444 ,A,C,,4444444444444444 � +8+(+C(( (C((()*+(*), )((()-.(( 57662DD45EFG12FF4F26HG!2F4G1! ��;:� 4I��� ��;F��JJ4@A.*,,B ,A,C(+ )-,C))4444444444444444 ++KC.K4444444444444444 � ,A,C(+ (C((()*+(*), )((()-.(( 57662DD45EFG12FF4F26HG!2F4G1! ��;:� 4I��� ��;F��JJ4@A.*,,B AA(C(+ --)C)+4444444444444444 )+.CL(4444444444444444 � AA(C(+ (C((()*+(*), )((()-L)M FNE;O7146724922 ��;:� 4I��� ��;2P���?�?4@A.*,,B +,.C,( K+CKK444444444444444444 -MC,+444444444444444444 � +,.C,( (C((()*+(*), )((()-.(( 57662DD45EFG12FF4F26HG!2F4G1! ��;:� 4I��� ��;F��JJ4@A.*,,B AK,C(+ -A-C,)4444444444444444 ))LCAK4444444444444444 � AK,C(+ (C((()*)-*), )((()M-)) 57662DD45EFG12FF4F26HG!2F4G1! ��;:� 4I��� ��;F��JJ4@A.*,,B -A)C(+ ,(KCMM4444444444444444 +M)C-A4444444444444444 � -A)C(+ (C((;444444444444444444444 ;444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((;444444444444444444444 ;444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((;444444444444444444444 ;444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((;444444444444444444444 ;444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((,8-+AC,- )8)LLCKA +8+).C,L ,8-+AC,- (C((!����J�Q���?4=J4/�?RC0S42�T�� 44447U=>��4)(),*()*+( )8KM-C,,V444444444 :"��?���=�;4 ;4444444444444444444444)(),*()*)- -A)C(+V444444444444 4 (C((6�Q=�Q�"�T(C((6�Q=�Q�"�T(C((6�Q=�Q�"�T�: ,8-+AC,-4444444444444 (C((6�Q=�Q�"�T!7: ;444444444444444444444,8-+AC,-V4444444444444:������T4RW XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX444444444444I���4N=>QS /���6�Y��<�T4RW XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX4444444444443���W4!=R>�� /���7���=Y�T4RW XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX4444444444440��?>�4N?��Z /���

�����[�����4���\����4]���4��̂ ��_\������\4�̀ 4�a��#�_����4�̀�4̂ �4���_��4�#����̀&�$���4bcd4bebf

ghijkl4mnoo pqrqonsst4uqrvwx4yt4ghijkl4mnoo4pnowz4{|{}~|}~�|4�|z{�z�}4�|��||��wvvt4�hyi�v pqrqonsst4uqrvwx4yt4�wvvt4�hyi�v4p�z4jv��wvvt4�hyi�vl4h��jjhivoqvrl4hi�{{|l4w�nqs�twvvt~jhyi�v�wy�ix~jh�l4j���4pnowz4{|{}~|}~��4�|z}}z�|4�|��||�4�xhyw4�j�hyno4�w�uqhvz4{|{{~||}~{|}{{guqw�l4�qvuivpqrqonsst4uqrvwx4yt4guqw�l4�qvuiv4pnowz4{|{}~|}~��4��z��z�|4�|��||�



����������	
������ ������� ������������ ���������� �!��"#�$%�&�'((�)*)+*,�-.*/0123�04/5,6+7564/89:;<=>�?;@ABCDE;A;<FE�G�HI?IH J�JJ9:;<=>�?;@ABCDE;A;<FE�G�KLMNH J�JJO@F>�PQ�RS;TET<FP<�RT>A;<FE �U�UVV�WXY<F;D;EF�Y<=PA; J�JJZF[;D�?;@ABCDE;A;<FEG�M@E= J�JJ\*33�6/]460*�̂-1)*/538HZ_ K̀a�L?9̀ H��bbR Wc�JcWJW� d���J��JJeL9??Kff�LNIỲKII�IK?gYOKI�ỲO Wc�JcWJW� d����J�eL9??Kff�LNIỲKII�IK?gYOKI�ỲO Wc�JcWJW� d��J�J�eIhNGi9̀ �?9K�bKK Wc�JcWJW� d��U��JeL9??Kff�LNIỲKII�IK?gYOKI�ỲO Wc�JcWJW� d�X��J�eL9??Kff�LNIỲKII�IK?gYOKI�ỲO WcWVcWJW� dV�W�J�e����������	
������ ���j��� �kjlmkjn�onj��������������?PC<p@<: dJ�V�e������������������������������������	
����j��� �kjlmkjn�o��������������RD;qTD;p�B>����rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr rrrrrrrrrrrrrr���������������������������������MTFF�hPC=s HTF;?;t@;u;p�B>����rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr rrrrrrrrrrrrrr���������������������������������a;<<>�OPBCD< HTF;9qqDPt;p�B>����rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr rrrrrrrrrrrrrr���������������������������������_@<EC<�hE@;[ HTF;

vwxyz��z{|�xw}~x�

����������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����¡���������������¡¢�������������¡������£���¡������������¤��£�����£���¡¥¦�������������������������§���̈�����¢�����¢�������©��������������������������ª��«�����������������������������ª��«������������������������¬��¬�§���̈����



Item 6.C 

Prepared by CF                                                 Reviewed by  JL      
  

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve Task Order No. 20 for Fiscal Year 2023-24 for  

Public Information Services with ICF Jones & Stokes, Inc. 
 
 
Summary: 
 
A component of DERWA program management includes public information efforts. The program 
activities consist of updating informational materials, website maintenance, and coordination of 
an annual communications roundtable exercise for DERWA, EBMUD, DSRSD, and the City of 
Pleasanton. These activities have been provided by ICF Jones & Stokes, Inc. since 2002 
through a professional services agreement and associated annual task orders. 
 
Proposed Task Order No. 20 would continue ICF Jones & Stokes, Inc. support for public 
information and agency outreach activities from July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024. The 
estimated cost of the work for Task Order No. 20 is $40,000.  
 
The largest expense in the proposed task order is the communications roundtable exercise. Due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, a communications roundtable activity has not been held for the last 
two years. Proposed Task Order No. 20 includes the communications roundtable exercise, 
tentatively planned for the spring of 2024. Funding for the task order is included in the proposed 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Operating Budget.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Motion, Task 
Order No. 20 to Professional Services Agreement A08-03, dated August 18, 2008, with ICF 
Jones & Stokes Inc. for the period July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024, in an amount not to 
exceed $40,000. 
 
April 24, 2023 
 
 



Item 7.A 

Prepared by NG  Reviewed by JL  

 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve Proclamation for Marisol Rubio’s 
Service on the DERWA Board of Directors 

 
 
Summary: 
 
Director Marisol Rubio departed the DERWA Board upon resignation of her seat on the Dublin 
San Ramon Services District Board of Directors in December 2022, after being elected as a 
councilmember for the City of San Ramon. She served as a DERWA Boardmember in 2021 and 
2022, serving as Vice Chair and Chair, respectively, making significant contributions to the 
success of DERWA. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Motion, the 
Proclamation of Appreciation for Service to DERWA by Marisol Rubio. 
 
April 24, 2023 
 
Attachment 
 

1. Proclamation 



  Attachment 1 
 

   
 

DERWA 
PROCLAMATION FOR SERVICE 

 
WHEREAS, the Dublin San Ramon Services District●East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) was formed by its Member Agencies to implement a 
recycled water program from a public policy perspective that benefits portions of the San 
Ramon and Livermore-Amador Valleys; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Members of the DERWA Board of Directors have diligently worked to 
achieve the mission of providing a cost-effective, dependable, and consistent supply of 
recycled water to the communities served by Dublin San Ramon Services District 
(DSRSD) and East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD); and 
 
WHEREAS, Marisol Rubio has contributed to the further development of this partnership 
and has remained a committed and staunch supporter of DERWA; and 
 
WHEREAS, Marisol Rubio has championed innovation and responsible stewardship 
regarding recycled water supply and reliability; and  
 
WHEREAS, Marisol Rubio has provided invaluable advocacy and meaningful 
engagement through the cultivation of relationships with Tri-Valley partners such as the 
City of Dublin, City of San Ramon, Central Contra Costa Sanitary District, and Zone 7 
Water Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, Marisol Rubio supported development and execution of the 2022 Interim 
Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water with DSRSD and EBMUD, 
to allow the DERWA partners to pause and re-evaluate program demands and demand 
management, monitor regulations, monitor key supply efforts, review wastewater flow 
trends, and track water recycling initiatives; and  
 
WHEREAS, Marisol Rubio presided over DERWA’s 2022 transition of the Authority 
Manager position from consultancy back to a partner agency leadership model; and  
 
WHEREAS, Marisol Rubio, representing DSRSD, provided steady leadership as DERWA 
Vice Chair in 2021 and Chair in 2022, guiding the DERWA Board through virtual meetings 
during the COVID-19 pandemic, and supporting streamlining measures regarding 
DERWA’s Board meeting schedule and other administrative efficiencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Marisol Rubio has earned the esteem and friendship of all who have 
collaborated with her; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the Board of Directors of the Dublin San 
Ramon Services District●East Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority 
hereby expresses its sincere appreciation for the contributions of 
 

Marisol Rubio 
 
Passed and adopted the 24th day of April 2023 by the DSRSD●EBMUD Recycled Water 
Authority Board of Directors. 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

      John A. Coleman              Georgean M. Vonheeder-Leopold 
                         Chair                           Vice Chair 

 
 ______________________________  ______________________________ 
                     April Chan            Ann Marie Johnson        
                       Director                       Director 

______________________________ 
                                   Nicole M. Genzale, CMC         
                                      Authority Secretary 



 

Item 7.B 

     
                                                
Prepared by JP  Reviewed by JL 
   

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve and Establish the Location, Time, and Place of Regular DERWA Board Meetings 

and Rescind Resolution No. 22-6  
 
 
Summary: 
 
Per Resolution No. 22-6, DERWA holds its Board of Directors meetings at the Dublin San Ramon 
Services District, District Office, located at 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 94568, at 6 p.m. 
on the fourth Monday in January, April, and September.  
 
The DERWA Board adopted Resolution No. 22-6 on May 16, 2022, to reestablish its meeting 
location at the Dublin San Ramon Services District, District Office, and to reduce the number of 
regular DERWA Board meetings from six to three meetings per year, saving staff time and 
maximizing work processes. 
 
On January 30, 2023, the Authority Manager discussed holding the first DERWA Board meeting 
each calendar year in February and increasing the number of DERWA regular Board meetings 
from three to four meetings per year, to better align with the timing of matters that must be 
considered by the Board. 
  
This item establishes the Board shall hold DERWA’s regular meetings on the first Monday in 
February, fourth Monday in April and September, and the second Monday in December of each 
year at the Dublin San Ramon Services District, District Office, with a start time of 6 p.m.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Resolution, that 
DERWA shall hold its regular meetings on the first Monday in February, fourth Monday in April 
and September, and the second Monday in December of each year at 6 p.m. at the Dublin San 
Ramon Services District, District Office, 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California 94568, and 
rescind Resolution No. 22-6. 
 
April 24, 2023 
 
Attachment 
 

1. DERWA Resolution 23-1 



  Attachment 1 

 
DERWA 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-1 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME, AND PLACE AT WHICH REGULAR 
MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL BE HELD AND 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 22-6 
 

WHEREAS, the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority ("Authority") requires regular 

meetings to conduct the business of the Authority; and  

WHEREAS, the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, upon which the Authority is 

organized, requires the Authority to determine the frequency of regular meetings and specify by 

resolution the date, time, and place at which regular meetings shall be held; and  

WHEREAS, the DERWA Board adopted Resolution No. 22-6 on May 16, 2022, which 

rescinded Resolution No. 20-2. Resolution 22-6 decreased the number of regular Board 

meetings from six to three annually, and reestablished the time and place for regular meetings 

of the DERWA Board on the fourth Monday in January, April, and September at 6 p.m. at the 

Dublin San Ramon Services District’s, District Office; and  

WHEREAS, the DERWA Board desires to hold the first DERWA Board meeting each 

calendar year in February and to increase the number of DERWA’s regular Board meetings 

from three to four meetings annually, to better align with the timing of matters that need to be 

considered by the Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water 

Authority, a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, 

California, hereby resolves as follows:  

1. The regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the first Monday 

in February, fourth Monday in April and September, and the second Monday in December, at 6 

p.m. at the Dublin San Ramon Services District, District Office, 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, 

California 94568 commencing April 2023, and continuing until this resolution is rescinded.  

2. Resolution No. 22-6 attached as Exhibit “A,” is hereby rescinded. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DERWA 
Res. No. 23-1 
 
 

 - 2 - 

 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, 

a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its 

Regular Meeting held on the 24th day of April 2023, and passed by the following vote:  

 

 
AYES:  
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 

 
_____________________________________ 
John Coleman, DERWA Chair 

 
ATTEST:   
   Nicole Genzale, Authority Secretary 
 
 
 



Exhibit A





 

Item 7.C 

Prepared by JL                                         Reviewed by JL         

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Authorize the Authority Manager to Enter into an Agreement with Dublin San Ramon 

Services District to Prepare a DERWA Facilities Energy Evaluation 
 
 
Summary: 
 
At the January 30, 2023, DERWA Board meeting, staff presented a preview of the Fiscal Year 
Ending 2024 Operating Budget and highlighted the continuing trend in rising energy costs. 
Energy accounts for approximately 30 percent of the costs to operate and maintain the DERWA 
Program Facilities. DERWA’s energy budget for Fiscal Year Ending 2023 is approximately $1.2 
million and based on data related to projected rate increases from Pacific Gas & Electric 
(PG&E), Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD) has included a 30 percent increase in 
energy costs for Fiscal Year Ending 2024 in the proposed DERWA Operating Budget. 
 
DSRSD is currently preparing a comprehensive Energy Master Plan, which will evaluate energy 
usage for DSRSD’s water and wastewater facilities and develop a long-term strategy for 
improving energy efficiency and reliability for DSRSD. At DERWA’s request, DSRSD has asked 
its consultant, Carollo Engineers, for a proposal to prepare a DERWA Facilities Energy 
Evaluation. The scope of work would include summarizing DERWA energy demands and 
current sources of energy, evaluating the reliability and resiliency of the DERWA facilities, and 
identifying alternative sources of energy and opportunities to reduce energy demands. The 
results from the study would be used by DERWA to evaluate whether there are cost-effective 
energy projects that DERWA could consider implementing to control long-term energy costs.  
 
The 2003 Agreement for the Sale of Water by DERWA to DSRSD and East Bay Municipal 
Utility District (EBMUD) (Article I.E.) states "In order to carry out its responsibilities hereunder, 
DERWA may from time to time enter into one or more Service Level Agreements with one or 
both of the Member Agencies to accomplish the necessary work to implement the DERWA 
Program.” The DERWA Authority Manager is requesting the Board authorize the Authority 
Manager to enter into an agreement with DSRSD to prepare a DERWA Facilities Energy 
Evaluation. 
   
The project budget is $56,372 and will be funded from the Fiscal Years Ending 2023 and 2024 
Operating Budgets. The project is anticipated to take three months. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors authorize, by Motion, the 
Authority Manager to enter into an agreement with Dublin San Ramon Services District to prepare 
a DERWA Facilities Energy Evaluation. 
 
April 24, 2023 

 
Attachment 
 

1. Services Agreement 



  Attachment 1 

1 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Dublin San Ramon Services District - East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) 

Facilities Energy Evaluation 

This Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into and shall become effective on 
this _____ day of ____________, 2023, and specifies the terms and conditions for the Dublin San 
Ramon Services District (“DSRSD”), to prepare a Facilities Energy Evaluation for the benefit of the 
Dublin San Ramon Services District - East Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority 
(“DERWA”). 

WHEREAS 

On June 28, 1995, as amended on December 21, 1995, DSRSD and EBMUD entered into an 
agreement to form DERWA, a Joint Powers Authority in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties, for 
the purpose of implementing the DERWA Recycled Water Program; and  

On July 28, 2003, DERWA, DSRSD, and East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) executed the 
Agreement for the Sale of Water (Water Sales Agreement) setting forth the conditions for the 
supply and sale of recycled water between DERWA, EBMUD, and DSRSD; and 

On May 23, 2005, DERWA, DSRSD, and EBMUD executed an Operations Agreement setting forth 
the conditions under which DSRSD agreed to operate and maintain the DERWA Program 
Facilities; and 

Energy costs account for approximately 30 percent of the budget to operate and maintain the 
DERWA Program Facilities and DSRSD is projecting significant increases in energy costs based on 
projected rate increases from Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E); and  

DERWA desires to conduct an energy evaluation of DERWA facilities to assess current energy 
needs, evaluate DERWA’s energy reliability and resiliency to power interruptions, and identify 
potential sources of energy and opportunities to reduce energy demands; and  

The Water Sales Agreement Article I.E., DERWA Program Facilities states, "In order to carry out 
its responsibilities hereunder, DERWA may from time to time enter into one or more Service 
Level Agreements with one or both of the Member Agencies to accomplish the necessary work 
to implement the DERWA Program;” and 

On January 24, 2022, DSRSD entered into a contract with Carollo Engineers to prepare a 
comprehensive Energy Facilities Master Plan for DSRSD water and wastewater facilities; and 
 
In order to conduct an energy evaluation of the DERWA facilities, DSRSD has requested and 
received a proposal from Carollo Engineers to prepare the DERWA Facilities Energy Evaluation 
(“Project”) as an additional task to the DSRSD Energy Facilities Master Plan. 
 



   

2 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by DERWA and DSRSD that DSRSD shall complete said 
Project on behalf of DERWA, as set forth in greater detail herein:   
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

DSRSD will be responsible for the project management of all aspects of the Project, including 
contracting with Carollo Engineers to perform the work generally described as follows: 

TASK 1 — Summarize DERWA Energy Demands and Sources of Energy 
Prepare a summary of DERWA facilities energy demand and supply, including both the recycled 
water treatment facility and recycled water transmission system, and summarize the energy 
efficiency efforts undertaken by DERWA in recent years.  

TASK 2 — Evaluate DERWA Energy Reliability and Resiliency 
The DERWA facilities currently have no standby or backup power supply. Therefore, during utility 
power outages, it is not possible to move water into reservoirs, recycled water production is lost, 
and the facilities are generally not functional. As utility power outages have become more 
frequent and of longer duration, this could impact DERWA’s ability to meet recycled water 
demands. Task 2 will evaluate options for improving DERWA’s energy reliability and resiliency. 
Options could include standby power supplies such as emergency standby generators and 
temporary generator hookup provisions.  

TASK 3 — Evaluate Potential Options to Reduce Energy Demands 
The largest DERWA energy demands are ultraviolet disinfection at the recycled water treatment 
facility and pumping to the DERWA transmission system. Energy efficiency upgrades were made 
to the ultraviolet disinfection system as part of the DERWA Recycled Water Treatment Facilities 
Phase 2 Expansion and will be assessed as part of Task 1. Carollo Engineers will evaluate energy 
savings opportunities for the recycled water transmission system by analyzing the performance 
of distribution system pumps. This information can then be used to prioritize pump replacement 
to increase energy efficiency.  

TASK 4 — Identify Potential Partnering Opportunities on Energy Projects 
Identify potential conceptual opportunities for partnerships between DERWA, DSRSD, and 
EBMUD on energy projects. Such opportunities may include:   

1) Cost sharing for the acquisition of infrastructure for energy production and 
agreements for the use of energy produced from such infrastructure. 

2) Agreements on the purchase of renewable energy produced by DSRSD or DERWA. 
3) Agreements for the use of land owned by DSRSD or EBMUD for photovoltaic 

installations and energy production by DERWA. 

TASK 5 — Prepare Technical Memorandum 
Prepare a draft and final technical memorandum summarizing the findings of Tasks 1 – 4.  

 



   

3 

INVOICING 

DSRSD shall provide itemized monthly invoices to DERWA. DERWA shall pay DSRSD for all 
services to be performed by DSRSD pursuant to this Agreement. Compensation and 
reimbursement of expenses shall be payable promptly upon receipt of the monthly billing by 
DSRSD to DERWA. 

BUDGET 

The Project budget is shown in Exhibit A. DSRSD shall monitor expenditures and be responsible 
for taking all reasonable and prudent actions to keep the Project within budget. 

SCHEDULE 

The Project will be completed within three months of DSRSD issuing the Notice to Proceed to 
Carollo Engineers.  

GENERAL TERMS 

Dispute Resolution 
In the event that a dispute arises over the administration of this Agreement, the provisions of 
the Water Sales Agreement Article VI, DISPUTE RESOLUTION, shall be followed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in duplicate. 

DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT - EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY (DERWA) 

 

By:  __________________________________  Date: ______________________ 
Jan Lee, Authority Manager 

 
 
 
 

DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT (DSRSD) 

 

By:  __________________________________  Date: ______________________ 
Daniel McIntyre, General Manager 
 

 



   

 

EXHIBIT A 

DERWA Facilities Energy Evaluation – Estimated Budget 
 

Task Consultant (a) DSRSD Total 

1. Summarize DERWA Energy Demands 
and Sources of Energy $6,710 $1,200 $7,910 

2. Evaluate DERWA Energy Reliability 
and Resiliency $14,559 $1,200 $15,759 

3. Evaluate Potential Options to Reduce 
Energy Demands $8,857 $1,200 $10,057 

4. Identify Potential Partnering 
Opportunities on Energy Projects $6,527 $1,200 $7,727 

5. Prepare Technical Memorandum $12,919 $2,000 $14,919 

Total Budget $49,572 $6,800 $56,372 

(a) Based on Carollo Engineers proposal, 3/31/23. 
 



Item 7.D 

1 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

Approve and Adopt the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
Operating and Capital Budget 

Summary: 

The DERWA Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA) provides that the Authority must adopt an 
annual fiscal year budget showing expenditures and means of financing such expenditures. A 
preliminary draft budget was discussed with the DERWA Board of Directors at the January 30, 2023, 
DERWA Board meeting.  

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024 proposed operating budget is $7.895 million, an increase of $1.690 
million (27%) over the adopted FY 2022-2023 operating budget of $6.204 million. Recycled water 
deliveries for FY 2023-2024 are projected to be approximately 5,605 acre-feet. The proposed DERWA 
operating budget includes DSRSD’s FY 2023-2024 budget of $5.725 million for the operations and 
maintenance of the DERWA facilities, an increase of approximately $1.736 million (44%) over the 
adopted FY 2022-2023 DSRSD operations and maintenance budget. Generally, the increases in the 
DSRSD’s operations and maintenance budget are attributable to: 

• Backwash Treatment: The cost to treat recycled water filter backwash streams discharged to
the DSRSD wastewater treatment plant is projected to increase by an estimated $1.3 million,
from $100,000 to $1,400,000. The increase in cost takes into account projected DSRSD
wastewater treatment rates, the addition of the ballasted flocculation treatment system, and the
significant increase in recycled water production that has occurred since DERWA operations
began in 2006. DERWA and DSRSD are currently studying potential options to reduce the
volume and/or strength of the filter backwash stream to mitigate the anticipated increase in
treatment cost. This effort is consistent with the 2005 DERWA-DSRSD Operations Agreement,
which identified the need to develop a future project to reduce the costs of treating the filter
backwash streams.

• Energy: Based on data related to projected rate increases from Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E),
a 30% increase has been included in the proposed FY 2023-2024 budget for energy costs. This
represents an increase of $350,000 from the previous fiscal year.

• Labor: The labor portion of the operations budget includes a $152,000 increase (11%) from the
current fiscal year to reflect fully burdened labor rates and increased maintenance requirements.

Agency contributions plus estimated revenue from water sales to the City of Pleasanton will cover the 
$7.895 million budget for the operations and administrative expenses, and the debt service payments. 
The FY 2023-2024 budget for the state loan repayment is $1.646 million.  

The capital expenditure for FY 2023-2024 is $1.590 million. Total capital appropriations are proposed to 
increase from $106.827 to $107.984 million, an increase of $1.157 million, to fund the projects in the FY 
2023-2024 capital plan. Capital appropriations include prior capital spending, estimated FY 2022-2023 
capital expenditures, and proposed FY 2023-2024 expenditures. Previously approved future 
appropriations have been utilized and adjusted accordingly. Capital projects continuing from the Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 budget are the Permanent Supplemental Water Supply, New/Replacement Capital 
<$50K, Tertiary Influent Pump Station (TIPS) Variable Frequency Drives Upgrade, Air Relief Valve 
Rehabilitation/Replacements, SFUV Cable Harness Replacement, UV Lamp Electrical Connector 
Replacements, and HVAC Replacements. 



Prepared by CF      Reviewed by JL 

2 

The required contribution for operations from the Member Agencies will be based on the projected 
water sales for FY 2022-2023, currently projected at 68.65% DSRSD and 31.35% EBMUD. Pleasanton 
will continue to pay a per acre-foot charge for water delivered. The required contributions for the state 
loan repayment will be based on the allocation of capital facilities.  

For DSRSD, the estimated FY 2023-2024 contribution is $4.429 million for the operating budget and 
$0.770 million for the capital budget; for EBMUD the estimated contribution is $2.481 million for the 
operating budget and $0.607 million for the capital budget; for City of Pleasanton the estimated 
payments for recycled water deliveries are $0.985 million. The DERWA Treasurer and Member 
Agencies have reviewed the proposed budget.  

Recommendation: 

The Authority Manager and Treasurer recommend the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by 
Resolution, the DERWA Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Operating and Capital Budget. 

April 24, 2023 

Attachment  

1. DERWA Resolution No. 23-2



Attachment 1 

3 

DERWA 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES 
DISTRICT EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement under which Dublin San Ramon 

Services District East Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) was 

formed provides that on or before April 30 of each year, the Authority’s Board of Directors must 

adopt an annual budget for the following fiscal year showing proposed expenditures and the 

proposed means of financing such expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the DERWA Treasurer and the Member Agencies have reviewed, and the 

Authority Manager has recommended, a proposed Operating and Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 

(FY) 2023-2024; and presented the proposed budget at the April 24, 2023, DERWA Board 

Meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has considered all the oral and written information 

presented. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the DERWA, a Joint 

Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, as follows: 

1. An operating budget appropriation totaling $7.895 million is hereby approved and adopted

for FY 2023-2024 as presented in “Attachment A”.

2. The capital budget appropriation is increased from $106.827 million to $107.984 million

as presented in “Attachment A”. Adjustments between projects shall be subject to the

same limits established by DERWA accounting and control procedures for expenditures.

For the operating budget, appropriations are made by work element.

3. In order to provide for completion of work on projects authorized but not completed as of

the close of the fiscal year, balances remaining at the close of FY 2023-2024 are hereby

appropriated for expenditure in the subsequent fiscal year, in addition to the applicable

fiscal year appropriations for capital and operating expenditures.

4. The Source of Funds for the capital and operating expenditures for FY 2023-2024 shall

be from Member Agency contributions, payments made by City of Pleasanton in

accordance with the January 7, 2014 Agreement to Provide Recycled Water Services by

and between DERWA and the City of Pleasanton, state and federal grants or loans, and/or



DERWA 
Res. No. 23-2 

4 

borrowed sources such as but not limited to commercial paper as prudently determined 

by the DERWA Treasurer. 

5. After consideration of DERWA reserves and working fund balances as required under

Article 13 of the Joint Powers Agreement and given the Source of Funds as described in

paragraph 4 above, the capital and operating expenditure budget projects a revenue

shortfall.

6. In accordance with Article 18 of the Joint Powers Agreement, a series of demands shall

be made of the Member Agencies for funds equal to the revenue shortfall as determined

by the percentages in the Water Sales Agreement.

7. All expenditures shall be authorized, and revenue shall be collected in accordance with

DERWA’s adopted Accounting Control Procedures.

8. The Treasurer shall analyze cash flow needs and invoice Member Agencies as needed to

maintain a prudent and sufficient working capital balance for DERWA.

9. EBMUD and DSRSD shall share in the expense for the operations and maintenance of

the DERWA facilities based on their proportion of actual water deliveries.

10. All expenditures in FY 2023-2024, except those listed in the operating budget, are capital

expenditures.

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DERWA Recycled Water Authority, a Joint

Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its Regular 

Meeting held on the 24th day of April 2023, and passed by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

____________________________ 
John A. Coleman, DERWA Chair 

ATTEST 

___________________________________ 
Nicole M. Genzale, Authority Secretary 



Attachment A 

Dublin San Ramon Services District 
East Bay Municipal Utility District  

Recycled Water Authority 
(DERWA) 

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 

April 24, 2023 

5



TOC 

DERWA OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 Page 

Budget Summary and Recommendations .......................................   1 

Resolution Approving and Adopting Operating & Capital Budget ....   3

DERWA Program Budget ................................................................   5 

DERWA Source of Funds Summary ................................................   6 

DERWA Operating Budget ..............................................................   7 

DERWA Capital Budget and Cost Sharing ......................................   11 

System Map ....................................................................................   12 

Detailed Project Summaries ............................................................   13 

 Supplemental Water Supply …… ................................................   14 

New/Replacement Capital <$50K ...............................................   15 

TIPS VFD Upgrades ...................................................................   16 

Air Relief Valve Rehabilitation .....................................................   17 

HVAC Replacements ..................................................................   18 

SFUV Cable Harness Replacement ............................................   19

UV Lamp Electrical Connector Replacement ..............................   20 

Backwash Analysis .....................................................................   21 

Gate Replacements ....................................................................   22 

Pine Valley Transmission Cathodic Protection ............................   23 

Decommission Microfiltration Facility ..........................................   24 

SCADA Replacement .................................................................   25 

6



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY24

Table 1
Appropriations ($000's)

Prior FY24

Appr Appr

Capital Appropriations 106,827  1,157  

Operating Approriations 79,993  7,895  

Table 2
Capital Program
Cash Flow ($000's)

Prior Estimated Proposed
Spending FY23 FY24 Future Total

Completed Projects 98,313  98,313  

Continuing Projects 1,804  610  1,590  2,467  6,471  
Capitalized Interest 
during construction 2,200  2,200  

Contingency 1,000  1,000  

Total 102,317  610  1,590  3,467  107,984  

Table 3
Operating Budget ($000's)

Estimated Budgeted Proposed
FY23 FY23 FY24

Expenses Expenses Expenses Difference

Operating Budget 3,979 4,559 6,249 1,690
Debt Service 1,646 1,646 1,646 0

Total 5,625 6,204 7,895 1,690

7



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY24

Table 4

DERWA FY24 PROJECTED CONTRIBUTION BY AGENCY

($000's)

Estimated Projected
FY23 FY24

CAPITAL

AGENCY CONTRIBUTION
DSRSD 297  770  
EBMUD 203  607  

PLEASANTON CONTR 110  213  
STATE LOAN/GRANT

TOTAL CAPITAL 610  1,590  

OPERATING

AGENCY CONTRIBUTION*
DSRSD 2,954  4,429  
EBMUD 1,736  2,481  

PLEASANTON PAYMENT 934  985  

TOTAL OPERATING 5,625  7,895  

*Agency contributions are calculated based on O&M costs, administrative costs and debt service costs.
For FY24, O&M and administrative costs, less payments from Pleasanton are split
68.65% DSRSD/31.35% EBMUD based on the projected water deliveries and will be adjusted at the

end of the water year to reflect actual deliveries per Section V.A. of the sales agreement.
Debt service costs are split based on the assigned capital to each agency at the time the payments
are made.

8



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY24
OPERATING BUDGET

Table 5

Estimated Proposed
FY23 FY23 FY24 Budget

Work Element Budget Expenses Budget Difference

Program Manager 245,000$    200,000$      245,000$   -$   
Treasurer 100,000     61,000      101,000 1,000
Legal Counsel 75,000      15,000      25,000 (50,000)
Secretary 20,000      15,000      18,000 (2,000)
Other (Insurance) 130,000     126,000     135,000 5,000
Operations 3,988,790  3,562,285  5,725,000 1,736,210
Debt Service 1,645,513  1,645,513  1,645,513 0

Total 6,204,303 5,624,798 7,894,513 1,690,210  

9



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY24

DERWA PROGRAM MANAGER
Table 6

Projected EOY Proposed
FY23 Budget FY23 Expenses FY24 Budget

Authority Manager $198,000 $125,000 $175,000

Staff 10,000 40,000 20,000

Expenses 800 1,000 1,000

DSRSD charges 1,000 0 1,000

Travel 0 0

Office supplies 200 0

Other 5,000 4,000 0

Public Information 20,000 10,000 40,000

Consultant Support 10,000 20,000 8,000

Total 245,000$   200,000$   245,000$   

DERWA TREASURER DETAIL
Table 7

Projected EOY Proposed
FY23 Budget FY23 Expenses FY24 Budget

Salary $25,000 $15,000 $30,000

Cost Accounting 65,000 40,000  65,000

Audit 10,000 6,000  6,000
Commerical Paper Fees -  

TOTAL 100,000  61,000  101,000  

10



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY24

DERWA LEGAL COUNSEL
Table 8

Projected EOY Proposed

FY23 Budget FY23 Expenses FY24 Budget

Contract $75,000 $15,000 $25,000

DERWA SECRETARY DETAIL
Table 9

Projected EOY Proposed

FY23 Budget FY23 Expenses FY24 Budget

Salary $18,000 $15,000 $15,000
Expenses 2,000 3,000
Training 0

TOTAL 20,000 15,000 18,000

DERWA OTHER DETAIL
Table 10

Projected EOY Proposed

FY23 Budget FY23 Expenses FY24 Budget

Insurance $130,000 $126,000 $135,000

TOTAL 130,000 126,000 135,000

11



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY24

DERWA OPERATIONS
Table 11

Projected EOY Proposed
FY23 Budget FY23 Expenses FY24 Budget

DSRSD Operations
Labor $1,314,730 $1,195,200 $1,467,000
Material/Supplies/Services 2,366,410   2,205,315   4,004,500    
Contractual Services 252,650      161,770      213,500       
CCCSD Supplemental  Supply 55,000      - 40,000 

TOTAL 3,988,790 3,562,285 5,725,000  

DERWA DEBT SERVICE
Table 12

Projected EOY Proposed
FY23 Budget FY23 Expenses FY24 Budget

State Loan Payments $1,645,513 $1,645,513 $1,645,513

TOTAL 1,645,513 1,645,513 1,645,513  

12



Table 13 Capital Project Costs and Cost Sharing
($000's)

Project Lead Agency Total Costs DSRSD EBMUD PLEASANTON

DSRSD & EBMUD 24,211$   10,980$   13,231$   
DSRSD 8,563 6,777 1,786
EBMUD 12,393 7,222 5,171
DSRSD 15,733 8,949 6,784
DERWA 1,109 122 987

Completed Projects
Pipelines
Pump Stations 
Water Tanks 
Treatment Plant 
Backbone Corrosion 
Fine Screening DSRSD 927 529 398
MR/UV Control Upgrade DSRSD 144 82 62
EBMUD Distribution DERWA 602 0 602
Air Relief DERWA 72 41 31
Pump Station Phase 2* DERWA 3,463 0 3,463
6th Sand Filter DSRSD 255 0 0 255
MF Membrane Replace DSRSD 700 335 251 114
SCADA DSRSD 341 194 147
PSR1 VFD Replacement DSRSD 566 334 142 90
Replacement DSRSD 251 115 68 68
SFUV/MF Ops Analysis DSRSD 50 23 14 13
Chlorine Mixer Replace DSRSD 13 6 4 3
RWTP Expansion DSRSD 19,589 9,011 5,289 5,289
Studies and Predesigns DERWA 5,746 2,880 2,866
Program Planning DERWA 3,585 1,757 1,828
Completed Projects Subtotal 98,313 49,357 43,124 5,832
Continuing and New Projects

<$50k DERWA 1,408$  591$  436$  381
Supply DERWA 3,372 1,956 1,416
TIPS VRF Upgrade DSRSD 150 69 41 40
Air Relief Valve Replace DSRSD 135 68 67 0
SFUV Cable Replace DSRSD 150 69 41 40
UV Lamp Electrical Con DSRSD 100 46 27 27
HVAC Replace DSRSD 76 35 21 20
Backwash Analysis DSRSD 200 92 54 54
Gate Replacement DSRSD 300 138 81 81
Pine Vly Cathodic Protect DSRSD 230 115 115 0
Decomm Microfiltration DSRSD 50 23 14 13
SCADA Replacement DSRSD 300 138 81 81
Contingency DERWA 1,000 333 333 333
Capitalized Interest DERWA 2,200 1,184 1,016
Continuing Projects Subtotal 9,671 4,857 3,743 1,070
TOTAL 107,984$  54,214$   46,867$   6,902$   

100% 50.2% 43.4% 6.4%

*Pump Station Phase 2 only contains DERWA local cost share of Corps of Engineers' Project

13



14



13 

CONTINUING CAPITAL PROJECTS 

PERMANENT SUPPLEMENTAL WATER SUPPLY 

NEW/REPLACEMENT CAPITAL <$50K  

TIPS VFD UPGRADES 

AIR RELIEF VALVE REHABILITATION 

HVAC REPLACEMENTS 

SFUV CABLE HARNESS REPLACEMENT 

UV LAMP ELECTRICAL CONNECTOR REPLACEMENT 

BACKWASH ANALYSIS 

GATE REPLACEMENTS 

PINE VALLEY TRANSMISSION CATHODIC PROTECTION 

DECOMMISSION MICROFILTRATION FACILITY 

SCADA REPLACEMENT  

CAPITAL PROJECTS COMPLETED in FY23 

CHLORINE MIXER REPLACEMENT 

15



14 

Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: Supplemental Water Supply  

Description: This project includes planning, design, and implementation of projects to 
provide DERWA with supplemental supply needed to address peak month supply 
shortfalls that could occur during summer months. Current 5-year recycled water 
demand projections by the participating agencies show the peak month demand will 
exceed the wastewater flows from DSRSD and Pleasanton.  Alternative sources of 
supply currently under consideration are additional supply from Livermore and/or raw 
wastewater from Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (CCCSD), and local 
groundwater.  Options to increase storage will also be evaluated, including the current 
treatment plant holding basins. In Fiscal Year 2024, DERWA will complete the Recycled 
Water Supply and Operations Plan Update that will evaluate and recommend near-term 
and long-term projects needed to reliably meet DERWA’s recycled water demands. 
Fiscal Year 2024 includes budget to continue to develop supplemental supply projects, 
including permanent storage basin improvements and further exploration groundwater 
from the Fringe Basin to meet peak demands.   

Lead Agency: DERWA  
Project Manager: DERWA Authority Manager 

Cost Sharing:  58 % DSRSD  42 % EBMUD  0% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: __0%__ Design ___0%_ Construction 

In Service Date: 
($000) 

Supplemental Water Supply 

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY23 

Proposed 
FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Supplemental  DERWA Planning 271 200 100 378 949 

Supply Design 
7  - - 212 219 

Property 8  - -  - 8 

Construction 1,176 335 556 2067 

Const. 
Mgmt. 

 - -  - 110 110 

Admin 3  - -  - 3 

Other 16  - -  - 16 

Total 1481 200 435 1256 3372 

Total Project Element Costs:  $3,372,000 

16



15 

Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: New/Replacement Capital < $50K 

Description: This program runs from Fiscal Year 2011 through Fiscal Year 2028 and 
provides funding for the acquisition of capital items for the DERWA facilities that cost 
less than $50,000 each.  Included are new capital items needed for improved reliability 
and/or efficiency, required by new regulation, and for the replacement or rehabilitation of 
existing assets that have reached the end of their useful life.  Projects for Fiscal Year 
2024 include small projects at the replacement projects at the treatment plant and 
transmission system. 

Lead Agency: DERWA 
Project Manager: DERWA Authority Manager 

Cost Sharing: Planning 42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
Design      42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
Property 42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
Construction 42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt 42% DSRSD  31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%  Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date:  FY 2024 

($000) 

New/Replacement Capital <$50K 

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY23 
Proposed 

FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

New/Replacement 
Capital <$50K 
Each 

DERWA Planning  - -  - -  - 

Design  - -  -  151  151 

Property  - -  - -  - 

Construction  323 200  200 511  1,234 
Const. 
Mgmt.  - -  - -  - 

Admin  - -  -  23  23 

Other  - -  - -  - 
Total  323 200  200  685  1,408 

Total Project Element Costs:  $1,408,000 

17



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: TIPS VFD Upgrades 

Description: The existing variable frequency drives (VFDs) for the three original 
Tertiary Influent Pump Station (TIPS) pumps are 15+ years old and are obsolete.  The 
scope of this project is to upgrade the three VFDs to a newer make and model.  While 
performing the VFD upgrade, the industrial control network will also be upgraded to 
Ethernet connectivity to allow for ease maintenance and faster recovery from 
breakdowns.  The District will hire a contractor and integrator to perform installation, 
PLC programming, SCADA configuration, testing, and startup. 

Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

TIPS  VFD Upgrades 

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY23 
Proposed 

FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

TIPS 
VFD 
Upgrades 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0 0 

Design 0 0 0 0 0 

Property 0 0 0 0 0 

Construction 0 0 150 0 150 
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0 0 

Admin 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 0 0 150 0 150 

Total Project Element Costs: $150,000 

16 
18



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: Air Relief Valve Rehabilitation/Replacement 

Description:  A project to service all air relief valves and rehabilitate or replace them if 
needed. There are sixty-eight air relief valves in the DERWA system. The proposed 
budget for the project is $135,000. 

Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 

Cost Sharing: Planning  40% DSRSD 60% EBMUD 
Design  40% DSRSD 60% EBMUD 
Property  40% DSRSD 60% EBMUD 
Construction  40% DSRSD 60% EBMUD 
Const Mgmt  40% DSRSD 60% EBMUD 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

TIPS  VFD Upgrades 

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY23 
Proposed 

FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Air 
Relief 
Valve 
Rehab/ 
Replace 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0 0 

Design 0 0 0 0 0 

Property 0 0 0 0 0 

Construction 0 0 135 0 135 
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0 0 

Admin 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 0 0 135 0 135 

Total Project Element Costs: $135,000 

17 19



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: HVAC Replacements 

Description:  This project will replace the HVAC systems in Buildings M, O, & R.  Each 
of these current systems have reached their useful lives.  The cost for Fiscal Year 2025 
is $76,000. 

Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

TIPS  VFD Upgrades 

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY23 
Proposed 

FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

HVAC 
Replacement 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0 0 

Design 0 0 0 0 0 

Property 0 0 0 0 0 

Construction 0 0 0 76 76 
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0 0 

Admin 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 0 0 0 76 76 

Total Project Element Costs: $76,000 

18 20



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: SFUV Cable Harness Replacement 

Description:  The SFUV system has two channels with five banks each, and seven 
modules per bank (seventy modules total). Each module has one pair of cable 
harnesses. Ten of the seventy modules are less than two years old and do not require 
replacement. Fourteen of the modules had the cable harnesses replaced in Fiscal Year 
2021, leaving forty-six modules remaining. District staff purchased the required 
materials in Fiscal Year 2022 and will replace the remaining forty-six modules  over the 
course of the next two years.  

Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

TIPS  VFD Upgrades 

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY23 
Proposed 

FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

SFUV Cable 
Harness 
Replacement 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0  - 

Design 0 0 0 0  - 

Property 0 0 0 0  - 

Construction 0 127 23 0  150 
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0  - 

Admin 0 0 0 0  - 

Other 0 0 0 0  - 
Total - 127  23 - 150

Total Project Element Costs: $150,000 

21



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: UV Lamp Electrical Connector Replacement 

Description:  There are 1,200 UV lamps in the SFUV system and each lamp has one 
electrical connector. District staff estimates that just over 1,000 connectors need 
replacement due to water intrusion from worn out wiper O-rings. District staff proposes 
replacing these electrical connectors. 

Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

TIPS  VFD Upgrades 

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY23 
Proposed 

FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

UV Lamp 
Electrical 
Connector 
Replacements 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0  - 

Design 0 0 0 0  - 

Property 0 0 0 0  - 

Construction 0 83 17 0  100 
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0  - 

Admin 0 0 0 0  - 

Other 0 0 0 0  - 
Total - 83  17 - 100

Total Project Element Costs: $100,000 

22



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: Backwash Analysis 

Description:  The DSRSD 2023 Regional Wastewater Rate Study analyzed the cost to 
treat backwash waste streams from DERWA. Based on that study, the cost to treat 
DERWA backwash rates will increase by an estimated $1.2 million. The increase in 
cost reflects the addition of the ballasted flocculation treatment system in 2018 and the 
significant increase in recycled water production that has occurred since operations 
began. In order to reduce the volume and/or strength of the filter backwash stream to 
mitigate the anticipated increase in treatment cost, DERWA will undertake a Backwash 
Analysis project to determine study potential infrastructure improvements to reduce the 
backwash flow and/or strength.   

Lead Agency:  DSRSD 
Project Manager:  Staff 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY23 

Proposed 
FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Recycled 
Water 

Treatment 
Plant 

Expansion 

DSRSD Planning - - 200 - 200

Design - -  - - - 

Property - -  - -  - 

Construction - -  - - - 

Const. Mgmt. - -  - - - 

Admin/Permitting - - - - - 

Other - -  - -  - 
Total - - 200  - - 

Total Project Element Costs: $200,000 

23



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: Gate Replacements 

Description:  Various sluice and slide gates require replacement at the treatment plant. 
The Gate Replacements project will be added in Fiscal Year 2024 with $150,000 
budgeted in the first year, and $150,000 budgeted in Fiscal Year 2025.  

Lead Agency:  DSRSD 
Project Manager:  Staff 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2026 

($000) 

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY23 

Proposed 
FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Recycled 
Water 

Treatment 
Plant 

Expansion 

DSRSD Planning - - - - - 

Design - -  - - - 

Property - -  - -  - 

Construction - - 150 150 300 

Const. Mgmt. - -  - - - 

Admin/Permitting - - - - - 

Other - -  - -  - 
Total - - 150 150 300 

Total Project Element Costs: $300,000 

24



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: Pine Valley Transmission Cathodic Protection 

Description:   A cathodic protection project, Pine Valley Transmission Cathodic 
Protection will begin in Fiscal Year 2024 to provide safety improvements to continue to 
mitigate possible AC interference from high-voltage overhead power lines. The cost of 
the project is $230,000.   

Lead Agency:  DSRSD 
Project Manager:  Staff 

Cost Sharing: Planning  47% DSRSD 53% EBMUD 
Design  47% DSRSD 53% EBMUD 
Property  47% DSRSD 53% EBMUD 
Construction  47% DSRSD 53% EBMUD 
Const Mgmt  47% DSRSD 53% EBMUD 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY23 

Proposed 
FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Recycled 
Water 

Treatment 
Plant 

Expansion 

DSRSD Planning - - - - - 

Design - -  - - - 

Property - -  - -  - 

Construction - - 230 - 230

Const. Mgmt. - -  - - - 

Admin/Permitting - - - - - 

Other - -  - -  - 
Total - - 230 - 230

Total Project Element Costs: $230,000 

25



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: Decommission Microfiltration Facility 

Description: A project to decommission the microfiltration facility, which is no longer 
used to provide recycled water treatment will begin in Fiscal Year 2024, with a project 
budget of $50,000. 

Lead Agency:  DSRSD 
Project Manager:  Staff 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2024 

($000) 

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY23 

Proposed 
FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Recycled 
Water 

Treatment 
Plant 

Expansion 

DSRSD Planning - - - - - 

Design - -  - - - 

Property - -  - -  - 

Construction - - 50 - 50

Const. Mgmt. - -  - - - 

Admin/Permitting - - - - - 

Other - -  - -  - 
Total - - 50 - 50

Total Project Element Costs: $50,000 

26



Capital Improvement Project Summary 

Project: SCADA Replacement 

Description: The DSRSD wastewater treatment plant SCADA system replacement 
project is currently in design. DERWA’s share of the project for the recycled water 
treatment systems is expected to cost $300,000 in Fiscal Year 2025. The project budget 
is based on a preliminary construction cost estimate provided by the design build firm.   

Lead Agency:  DSRSD 
Project Manager:  Staff 

Cost Sharing: Planning  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Design  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Property  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
Construction  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 
Const Mgmt  46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD  27% Pleasanton 

Grant/Loan Eligible: 0%     Design  0%     Construction 
In Service Date: 2025 

($000) 

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY23 

Proposed 
FY24 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Recycled 
Water 

Treatment 
Plant 

Expansion 

DSRSD Planning - - - - - 

Design - -  - - - 

Property - -  - -  - 

Construction - - - 300 300 

Const. Mgmt. - -  - - - 

Admin/Permitting - - - - - 

Other - -  - -  - 
Total - - - - 300 

Total Project Element Costs: $300,000 

25 



7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 94568-3018 | Phone: (925) 828-0515 
Email: derwamanager@dsrsd.com | http://www.srvrwp.org/ 

DATE: April 24, 2023 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors 

FROM:  Jan Lee, DERWA Authority Manager 

SUBJECT:  Authority Manager Update 

ADMINISTRATION 

Onboarding New DERWA Board Members. On 
March 22, 2023, DERWA Authority Manager Jan Lee 
and DSRSD Operations Director Jeff Carson provided 
an overview of the DERWA program to DERWA Board 
members - Director April Chan with EBMUD and Vice 
President Ann Marie Johnson with DSRSD. Following 
the discussion, DSRSD Plant Operations staff, Virgil 
Sevilla and Sinzee Tran gave Director Chan and 
EBMUD staff a tour of the Recycled Water Treatment 
Facility. 

Spring Irrigation System Reminders. EBMUD, DSRSD, and the City of Pleasanton are in the 
process of sending out annual reminders for customers to prepare for the upcoming irrigation 
season by performing an initial check to make sure their irrigation system is working properly 
with no leak and breaks. As part of this reminder, agencies provide a list of best practices to 
ensure that our recycled water customers are using water as efficiently as possible throughout 
the season. 

OPERATIONS 

2023 Recycled Water Production. The DERWA Recycled Water Treatment Facility produced 
140.8 acre-feet (AF) of recycled water between January 2023 and March 2023, compared to 
627.6 AF produced during the same time frame in 2022. This represents a decrease of 486.8 
AF produced in the first quarter of calendar year 2023 (a 78% decline in water production). The 
decrease in production is due to the extremely wet weather experienced by the Bay Area this 
winter and early spring. From January through March 2023, the recorded rainfall was 19.9 
inches, compared to 0.9 inches of rainfall recorded from January through March 2022. 

Annual Winter Maintenance. At the end of January 2023, DSRSD Operations staff conducted 
their annual DERWA winter cleaning and preventative maintenance activities. This work is timed 
to take place during the winter to coincide with seasonally low demand, minimize service 
interruptions, and prepare for the upcoming summer irrigation season. Highlights from this 
year’s activities include cleaning and inspection of holding basins, wet wells, and flocculation 
tanks; replacement of pump station switches that have reached the end of their useful lives; 
installation of new dewatering pumps; and caulking to reduce leakage at the ultraviolet effluent 
gate rail. Other minor maintenance and repair work included calibrating sensors, cleaning the 

Item 8.A

mailto:derwamanager@dsrsd.com


DERWA Authority Manager Report 
April 24, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
sand filtration, ultraviolet and ballasted flocculation systems, and replacement of lamps, 
electrical ballasts, pressure gauges and regulators throughout the DERWA system. The 
completed maintenance work helps the system continue to run at peak efficiency and minimizes 
potential odor issues with the surrounding neighborhood. 
 

 
Photos (Left to Right): Holding Basin No. 4 wet well before cleaning, during cleaning, and after cleaning. 


	Board Agenda 20230424
	Agenda Item 6.A Minutes 20230130
	Agenda Item 6.B Treasurer's Reports
	Agenda Item 6.C ICF Task Order No. 20
	Agenda Item 7.A Rubio Proclamation
	Agenda Item 7.B Date, Time, and Place of Meetings
	Agenda Item 7.C Facilities Energy Evaluation
	Agenda Item 7.D Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget
	Agenda Item 8.A Authority Manager Update



